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Form 11b

Smolensk pages in the history

of the Great Patriotic War.
Plan
1. Smolensk is “Key-Town” to Moscow.

2. Smolensk defensive battle.

· The beginning.

· The period of mobilization.
· First bombs over the town.

· Rocket barrage weapon “Katyushas”.
· Heavy fights in the town.
· Fights for Yelnya and birth of Soviet Guards.
· Battles in Vyazma direction.
· On the Solovyev Crossing.
3. The events of the war in the area of Monastyrshchinsky district.

· The underground organization in Dosugovo.

· Partisan detachment “Thirteen”.

            4. War memories will be alive in ages.

In autumn 2008 Smolensk, the central town of our region, celebrated two glorious date - 1145 years of its foundation and 65 years of liberation of the region from fascist occupation.

            Situated in the west of Russia, it has always been on the watch of the country’s borders and has always defended our Motherland. Many times it was ruined by enemies, every time it revived from ashes, just as the mythical bird Foenix. Not for nothing Foenix sitting on a gun is represented on the Coast of  Arms of  our ancient town.
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Every page in the history of Smolensk is a chronicle of heroic character of Russian people. For more than eleven centuries the town has been standing on the way of foreign enemies. It is often called “Key-Town” to the capital of Russia. For more than two months in summer of 1941 Soviet warriors, town and regional dwellers fought fiercely with superior German forces.
Smolensk Defensive Battle went down in history as one of the greatest and most persistent battles of the starting period of the Great Patriotic War. Delay in enemy’s intervention on the territory of Smolensk Region became an important strategic success of Soviet forces which frustrated Hitlerist plans of «Blitzkrieg» against the USSR. “In Smolensk battle we were getting stronger and becoming tempered; we studied the science of winning.” P.A. Kurochkin. 
The main events of the first month of the war developed on the central line. Fascists attached great important to occupation of the Soviet capital. Besides that they wanted to seize Moscow before winter arrived. The western directions of the Soviet – German front was the centre of the greatest fight. So, one of the greatest battles of the starting period of the Great Patriotic war came into the history under the name of Smolensk defensive battle.
The battle began on the 10th July 1941. On that day two major fascist tank groups rushed towards Smolensk from regions of Orsha and Vitebsk.
The main task of Soviet forces was to restrain fascist army advance and give our country opportunities to prepare and bring reserves up to the front.  Smolensk regional and town Communist party organization gave a great help to the military forces.
Mobilization of people and transport resources was performed successfully and in time. During the first days of the war 183 000 citizens were called up to the Army. Hundreds of thousands of citizens participated in the building of defensive fortifications; 300 thousand people and 40 thousand carts worked on defensive lines day and night.
During the short period of time, from July till September 1941, four defensive lines were constructed (round Smolensk; on the banks of the Dnieper- River, Sozh and Desna-rivers); their length was about 1500km; 85 aerodromes; 120 runways, hundreds of different defensive constructions were also made ready.
Smolensk working people also gave a helping hand to the groups of Western Front. They handed them 6700 cars, 50 thousand cards, 40 thousand tons of grain and flour; 30 thousand tons of meat, 630 tons of butter and cheese, 500 thousand cattle, 28 thousand pigs, 48 thousand sheep, much milk, eggs and other provision was handed to the Army.  
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First bombs fell down on Smolensk on 24th June, the 3rd day of the war. The second raid happened on 26th June. The night of 29th June was the most alarming one. About 2000 incendiary and high-explosive bombs have dropped on the town. More than a thousand of houses and hundreds of other buildings have burned. 

Women and teenagers worked on plants and factories, on farms and in the fields having replaced men which went to the front. 

Citizens of the town displayed real national patriotism. Until the end of July 54 partisan groups at the strength of 1160 people were organized. People’s volunteer corps commanded by Colonel P.F.Malyshev was formed on the basis of pursuit battalions. It took an active part in Smolensk defensive battle.

On 10th July fascist armies began their offensive. The enemy aspired to break forces of 19th, 20th, 16th Soviet armies. 

On those days, in the battles near Orsha and Rudnya, the first volleys for enemy were fired by the detached battery of rocket barrage weapon under the command of Captain I.A.Flyerov. Little later Soviet warriors named this weapon “Katyushas”, and the name became common. 
[image: image4.jpg]


  [image: image5.jpg]



[image: image6.jpg]


   [image: image7.jpg]-




Danger threatened Smolensk from all sides. But the most dangerous it was in the south, where the 47th German motorized corps attacked. In the evening of 15th July German troops rushed into the town along Kievskoye and Roslavlskoye highways. Heavy fights began in the streets of Smolensk. There was struggle for every stone house, for every street and square. 
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In all, Smolensk was defeated by 5 Soviet divisions. Over and over, enemies made attempts to rush to the right bank of the Dnieper-river, but in vain. Only on 22nd July, after receiving reinforce, they were able to penetrate Soviet defensive positions and seize that part of the town, which is called “Zadneprovie”. Fight renewed in full swing, and on 23rd July sunrise, as a result of fierce attack, enemy groups were annihilated. 
On 26th July Soviet infantry regiments under the command of Alakhverdyan and Alexandrov advanced. Hundreds of German soldiers were annihilated, 300 were captured. 
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In the second half of July enemy captured a small district town of Yelnya (in the east of the region). The so-called Yelninsky salient was formed. Hitlerist high command tried to use it as a spring-board for a new attack on Moscow. Enemy forces numbered about 70000 soldiers and officers, 500 guns and mortars, 40 tanks. Being fortified this way, the area of Yelnya seemed to be inaccessible.
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Soviet forces were given the task to rout enemy in this sector and to abolish Yelninsky salient. The command was headed by General G.K.Zhukov.
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Under the command of G.K.Zhukov the Front Headquarters worked out the plan of crushing Yelninskaya enemy grouping. 5 Soviet divisions joining 2 shock troops – southern and northern – were detached for this objective. The southern troop had been strengthened by 3 artillery regiments and 2 detached batteries of rocket barrage weapon (“Katyushas”); it was to play the main role in crushing the enemy. In all to the beginning of the attack, Soviet troops numbered about 60000 soldiers and officers, 800 guns and mortars, 35 tanks. 
The attack began on 30th August and to the end of 3rd September units of southern and northern shock troops, moving forward, narrowed the throat of the salient. Shadowed by tanks and aviation, Hitlerist troops began abandoning their positions. On 6th September Soviet soldiers liberated Yelnya. It became one of the first towns freed by the Soviet Army. In battles near Yelnya soldiers and officers of 100th, 127th, 153rd, 161st infantry divisions under the command of I.N. Russiyanov, A.Z. Akimenko, N.A. Gagen, P.F. Moskvitin displayed courage and bravery, fortitude and persistence, great self-discipline, as well as high quality martial skills. 

On 18th September, 1941, these military units first in the history of our Armed Forces were honoured with titles of Guards. Thus, in the fire of battles near Yelnya, the Soviet Guards was born. 
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In 2007 the town of Yelnya was awarded the honorary title of “The Town of Martial Glory”.
“The main result of the Smolensk defensive battle was the fact that Soviet troops managed to gain the time for organizing defense of the capital and the following crushing the enemy. Delay of the enemy’s offensive in the area of Smolensk has become a great strategic success.”   G.K. Zhukov

The main total of Smolensk Defensive Battle was frustration of the Hitlerist “Blitzkrieg”. As a result of it, Soviet commandment got time for the defense of Moscow, our capital, and the posterior crushing the enemy. 
“The enemy had been stopped in Smolensk-Moscow direction. He had to take up a defensive position for almost two months. It was for the first time since the beginning of World War II that the Hitlerist Germany had to take up the defense.” V.D. Sokolovsky.
But enemy was strong yet and longed to Moscow. German troops planned to spend a day or two to annihilate our units surrounded near Vyazma. Instead, they were delayed for the whole fortnight to go forward. Our General Headquarters used that time to withdraw the troops which escaped encirclement from the Western front to the Mozhaisk defensive line and also to move up strengths from its reserves closer and repulse enemy.

And what was happening near and around Smolensk at that time? 

Smolensk citizens had been digging trenches, anti-tank ditches, taking care of the wounded, attacking enemy in the streets. They showed all people’s unity with the Army. But the enemy had been drawing up forces, and defenders’ forces had been dwindling.

On 29th July the Western front command ordered Soviet troops to retreat from Smolensk across the Dnieper-river crossing known in history of the war under the name “Solovyeva pereprava” (the Solovyev Crossing). The defense of the Solovyev Crossing became a bright example of unshakable determination and inflexible courage of Soviet soldiers. Waters of the Dnieper-river became red of blood of perished defenders of the crossing.
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As I have already mentioned, our district is situated far away from main roads. No railways and railway stations, no large airfields, no large tracts of forest. There were only hills, fields, peat-bogs, copses, small woods and a great number (337) of small villages, where not less than 60 thousand people lived on the eve of the war.

But it also became the place where the ground was burning under the feet of invaders. Partisan movement, begun from the very first day of occupation as a form of people’s patriotic resistance to invaders, took place in our district, as well as in other places on the occupied territory. Its forms varied from single patriots and small anti-fascist groups to big partisan groups and detachments. 
The most famous local group of that sort was the underground organization headed by N.F.Zorak in the village of Dosugovo. Members of the organization spread leaflets telling truth about the situation at the front; provided partisan groups in forests with food and equipment; performed different tasks in the enemy rear, made ambushes, damaged connection lines, etc. What was the most important, they showed the rest of the population the example of struggle with the enemy in his rear.

Moral and material damage to the enemy was so great, that local German commandment together with police-board of Monastyrshchina had undertaken active steps for annihilating the organization. Founded in March, 1942, it had been functioning in Dosugovo and nearby areas till the end of the year. Then, after N.F.Zorak arrest, it joined a large partisan detachment on the territory of Bryansk region.

Besides the village of Dosugovo, smaller partisan groups operated also in the villages of Novomikhailovka, Egorye, Putyatino, Burkhovo, Sloboda, Tsikunovka and others.

Another glorious example of partisan movement on the territory of our district was the activities of a large partisan detachment under the command of S.V.Grishin (on      7th March, 1943 he was awarded the title of the Hero of the Soviet Union). 
At the beginning of the war, when our Army was stepping back to the east, a young Soviet officer Grishin together with some other soldiers didn’t manage to break out of encirclement. But he tried to gather other small groups in the western area of Smolensk region and adjoining territories of Belorussia and organized a large partisan detachment with its own headquarters and weapons. 

After the detachment settled connections with Partisan Movement Headquarters in Moscow it began accomplishing raids along the occupied territories of Smolenshchina and Belorussia, destroying German military garrisons and their equipment, carrying on the so-called “railway war”, etc.

The detachment “Thirteen” was functioning on the territory of the district during 1942-1943 and participated in the liberation of the area.
More than 60 years have passed since that terrible war. It has left unforgettable not only on pages of war and historic documents, books and picture albums, but also in genetic memory of our people.
Thankful generations of descendants sacredly esteem the memory of soldiers who took part in the war and won the glorious victory; of those who came back from its fronts and those who laid their heads on battle-fields.

Our small rural district of Monastyrshchina with its present day population not more than 13 thousand people gave birth to 12 Heroes of the Soviet Union. One of them, A.I.Koldunov, was awarded this title twice.
To these Heroes, as well as to full Bearers of the Order of Glory and Heroes of Socialist Labor patriotic complex “Alley of Heroes and the Eternal Flame” is devoted. It was constructed in 2007 and opened on 12th October that same year. The complex was constructed on the place where the Bust of Twice Hero of the Soviet Union A.I.Koldunov was put in 1978.
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All the other monuments of our settlement are also war memorial places. The monument “A Soviet Soldier-Liberator” is situated on the territory of Brotherly Cemetery, and here soldiers and officers perished during the liberation of the district, and partisans killed by fascists are buried. 
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One more monument, called “Stella”, is devoted to our country fellows perished at the fronts of the war. There are more than a hundred names on its memorial boards. These memorial places are located in the central part of Monastyrshchina. Three more monuments were put in different years in the outskirts of the settlement.

In any season, at any time of the day there are flowers at the bottoms of the monuments. Every 9th May and 25th September (the Day of the Liberation of the district) we take part in meetings held here and stand on Guard of Honor. 
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O, Heroes!
We know not all of your names.

But courage of yours

In all times will live!

